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HILLSIDE, Guildford Road, Westcott RH4 3LF      TQ137484

In December 1771 twenty five rods of land were taken out of the Waste of the Manor 
of Westcott and granted to Nathaniel Woods, who was admitted as a customary or 
copyhold tenant of the enclosed land and the cottage and buildings that he had 
recently erected thereon. The yearly rent was fixed at two pence and the certain heriot 
one shilling if the property changed hands.  The court roll also recorded that no fine 
was liable to the Lord of the Manor ‘out of special favour’.

In February 1785 Nathaniel’s son. John Woods of Westcott, labourer, was admitted 
tenant to the use of the copyhold property for which he had to pay a £1 1s 0d fine. The 
father surrendered the property completely to John in February 1790.

In 1803 the copyhold land and property was bought by Thomas Bird, miller. He died 
in 1824 and in accordance with the manorial custom of Borough English, whereby 
copyhold property is inherited by the youngest instead of the eldest son, his son 
Alfred Bird was admitted to the property (at the third time of asking). By this time the 
fine had increased to £5.  Alfred was at this time an infant of 5 years and 4 months 
and custody was granted to his mother who was called upon to keep the property in 
good repair until Alfred reached his 21st birthday.  However, Alfred died in 1836 and 
James Bird, his elder brother and heir, inherited the land. A fine of £4 was paid on 
admittance. 

The Tithe Apportionment in 1838 showed James Bird as the owner and occupier of 
the House and garden, with an acreage of 1 rood and 15 perches, which are clearly 
identifiable on the tithe map of 1840 (reference 1014).

James Bird is shown as the occupant in the 1841 census, with Sarah his wife and four 
children: Mary, Thomas, Henrietta and George.  

At the 1868 Tithe assessment, G A Fuller of The Rookery,was shown as the owner 
and Thomas Weller as the occupant. The manorial records note George Arthur 
Fuller’s ‘admission., on 24th May 1860.

When the Rookery Estate was auctioned in 1894 Lot Four was ‘The Cottage 
Residence known as Heath Cottage1’ surrounded on all sides by Westcott Heath and 
with an estimated area of 1 rood and 23 perches. 

1 Barrington House in Guildford Road, next door to the Cricketers, was also known as Heath Cottage
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At that time it was occupied by Miss Miall, a yearly tenant paying £40 per annum. It 
was bought, with the Rookery mansion by Mr G Brooke for £975.

From the Dorking Advertiser we know that in March 1909 a display of Gymnastics 
was held at Hillside, courtesy “A display of Gymnastics was held at Hillside, courtesy 
of Sir Frederick and Lady Robinson.  At a presentation of awards to the Gymnastic 
Class, it was  pointed out that the boys benefited both physically and morally from the 
class; ‘pulling together’ for the common good. The lads were also encouraged to learn 
to use a rifle so as to be able to defend this country should the need arise. 

The property remained part of the Rookery estate until 1919 when Mr Brooke, offered 
it for sale as a ‘Charming Bijou Freehold Residence’. By this time it had been 
renamed Hillside or Hill Side - both spellings are quoted.

2



Westcott Local History Group

The plot on Westcott Heath was clearly identified on the plan that accompanied the 
Sales Prospectus:
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When a new Parish Council was elected in March 1928 the members included 
Maurice Blackburn Hughes, Gentleman, Hillside.  The 1932 Register of Electors 
shows Maurice and his wife Louisa Mary at Hill Side.
The Times advertised the sale of Hillside by auction on 29 May 1934
Robert Sterndale Bennett  was the occupant in 1951; William and Grace Carter in 
1972.

The Times recorded the death of Rev Jacob Anastasio Forrest aged 87 on 5 April 
1948 and of his wife Theresa Forrest aged 75 on 24 June 1948.

      
C 1906 1970s

1980s 

The house has been  surveyed by the Domestic Buildings Research Group (Surrey) 
Their report (No. 2811) is dated August 1980 when Mr & Mrs Roberts were the 
occupants, and summarises Hillside as:
“a 2 storey symmetrical gable ended Georgian brick house with central doorway and 
chimney either end. The roof is tiled. There is a service area behind ¾ of the house cut 
into the hill. The stairs are in the service in the angle of the L. The Cottage Ornée 
style tower and decorations are probably later additions. There are 3 gables facing the 
front.”
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